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A8 the reader will find in this paper, both Bullock’s and Stem United
Methodist Churches have a great deal of history since their beginnings
until the present day. It has been an enjoyable research project and
it is hopeful the reader will try tc envision some of the occurrences as
they arose during the 1life and times of easch Ohurch, I feel that I have
only touched briefly on the history of Bullock's and Stem United Methodist
Churches, but what the reader will find in this paper are the major EVENTS ANO

historical factes of each Church,



The Bullock®s Methodist Episcopal Church was organiged in 1832 in Granville
County, North Carolima by & group of dedicated pesople who were sincere in
their religious beliefs and respascted their God, They were men and women who
were not afraid of work or hexrdships which faced them at various times, thus
they were the kind of people who led to the establishment of a strong church.
In fact, the early families of the Bullock's Church taught their children
to be strong and ninta.in & constant faith in God, Because of this powerful
spirit which existed both within the homes of the Church fourders and members,
and within the Church itself, generations have proudly stood up and called
Bullock®s Methodist Church, ®Blessed," '

The Bullock®’s Methodist Church was organized just "fifty-six years after
the Decleration of Independence was signed, aml forty-three years after
the Constitution of the United Sates was writtem by representatives of the
Thirtesn Original Colonies,” 1 Mrs, Kathryn Royster, & descendant of the
founders of the Bullock’s Methodist Church anl a present member of this
Church has done much stuly concerning the history of her bdeloved Churchj
Mrs, Royster uintaiﬁs, "this section of Southern Granville County was
permanently settled bstween 1750-1765 by people of English and Scotch-Irish
descewtwho migrated from Virginis and Marylani,” 2 The lanmd in the Granvillie
area appeared to be fertile enough to grow crops, yet have enough gressland
to raise cattle and horses; and since the s0il aml climate were suitabdle
to the early descemdants, the population began to grow., And as the population
grew in the Granville area, the need for spiritusl enrichment also grew,

To help meet some of the spiritual needs, "two aocres of lanml, for a Methodist
Church, was given by Edward Bullock, son of Micajah Bullock, who came to



Granville County from Hanover County Virginia aroumd 1765." 3 10 go further
btack in history, it might be interesting to note that much of the lard in
Granville County was origimelly given as a grant by Earl of Granville after
which Granville County was named,

There were five origimal trustees of the Bullock's Methodist Church,
three of whom were brothers: Edward Bullock, Richarxd Bullock, ami Lenomard
Bullock, and also ¥illiam Fleming and Clement Lyon, The deed, of which &
copy is enclosed, for the land on which to build a Methodist Church was
presented by Edward Bullock, who owned the lamd, on September 14, 1833 to
the Deeds Office, Yet, the deed mn't‘ acknowledged as officifl until
& November Court ruling of 1843, Despite the delay in getting the deed,
*Bullock's Methodist Church was built in 1833 on & knoll of sandy soil
shaded by oak%., hickories, pines ani cedsr@. nsar a spring of clear water,” 4
Although the building was quite simple in comstruction, it represented the
love, powerful spirit, amd long hours of work of many faithful people as a
sanctuary to Ged,

Once worship in the Bullock's Methodist Church got under way, it was
placed in the Granville Circuit, of the Danville District in the Virginmia
Conference, Reverend Benjamin Kidd was the first pastor of the Bullock's
Methedist Church in 1833, 1In 1836, when the North Carolina Conference v
formed, the Granville Circuit was placed in the Raleigh District while
Reverend Henry Speck was the minister, The ministers during the early years
at Bullock's Methodist Church served on an average of one to three years whilg
the church m growing in membership. It was during the pastorate of Reverend
Ira T, Wyche in 1845 "that the Methodist Convention, which was in session in
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louisville, Kentucky, adopted the plan of lep.f:'a.tion in the Methodist Church
and set in motion the forces that organized the Methodist Episcopal Church
South," 5 Thus the Church under stuly became the Bullock's Hethodist
Episcopal Church South, Many occurrences in Methodism {just as the one mentioned)
and in our country arvose during the early formative years of the Church and
greatly affected the Bullock's Nethodist Episcopal Church; included among
these occurrences was the war between the Btates, In 1861 many of the young
men of the Bullock's Church joined the "plough boye anl other groups in and
around Granville County, and went away to fight the war, not knowing whether
they would ever teturn,” 6 Although many of the Bullock's Methodist Church
families experisenced deaths due to the war, some of the men did fteturn to the
Granville County arss and it grew and prospered, and so did the Bullock's
Methodist Church,. Here I thifk a specisl trw should bs extended to
those men who fought in the war amd did not return to their families and to
the church that they so loved, |

In 1862 the Granville Circuit once again changed Districts and this
placed Bullock's Methodist Episcopal Church South in the Washington, North
Carolima District, While in the Washington District, Revererd William C,
Gannon and Reverermd T.W, Moore served as the ministers, Still in 1872
the Granville Circuit was again changed and placed in the Raléigh District
while Revererd J.R., Griffith was the minister. And in 1884, the Granmville
Cireuit was placed in the Durham District ani remained here until 1889;
during this time the following ministers served Bullock's Methodist Church:
Reversnd T,C, Moses, Reverend J.E, Underwood, Reversmd. P.L, Groom, anml

Reverend J,3. Nelson,



By 1870 the Bullock's Methodist Episcopal Church South had grown
tremendoudly in membership, ami it was apparent that & larger bullding was
needed to accommédate its members, The people of the Church were so enthused
over the new bﬁl.ldins project that they, and even their friends outsides the
Church membership, provided moet of the material and labor for the new Church.
There 1s enclosed in this paper & picture of the Church, built in 1870,
which still stands today, and is still used on every first and thixd Sunday
for Worship Services, "It was a beautiful Church constructed of heart pine,
put together with wooden pegs and hard cut nails, The interior was plastered
and the woodwork finished with wide hani dressed boards, The psws were also
hand dressed and finished.* 7 Three sections of pews were imstalled within
the Church with two small rows on the left and right sides and & larger
section im the middle,

Not only did the Church expsrience growth, but the area surrounding the
Church witnessed the building of the Seaboard Railroed which ran just in fromt
of the Church, Around 1885, "the Church smiled @s progress whistled past
her dooxr, Four passenger trains and two freight trains stopped each day:at the
station (amdl telegraph office combined) in the small villdge a half-mile
away from the Church which was (and still is known) as Hester, A Post Office
existed in the community amd two small stores which served a wide area,” 8

Consequently, as the community of Hester grew, the Bullock's Methodist
Church continued to grow in membership, By 1900, 175 members were listed
on the membership roll, The membership body of the Church was a very close
one and worksd like an entire family to maintain & spiritual atmospherefor
young and old slike, Naturally, the Church faced hardships amd exciting



sitmations, yet they faced each ocourrence, as it arose, together., "The
preaching services at Bullock’s for many years were held on sach thixd
Surday; Sunday School each Suniey and prayer meetings on Sunday nights.” 9
There was a ma jor event which occurred for many years which seemed to be
a high point for the Bullock’s Methedist Church membership; "The Protracted
Meeting was held the week following the third Sunday in July, The week
provided well for the social life of the young ladies ard men, The families
were large and the week became one of fellowship enmd visitation, At noon
time during the SBunday meeting, the tables (on the Church grounds) were
loasded with a variety of focds, A Preaiding Elder once made the remark that
thers were more pretiy girls and finéd hqrses at the: Bullock®’s Methodist
Church than any other Church in the District.” 10

In 1913 the Bullock’s Methodist Episcopal Church South stood proud
as it became the Mother Church to the Creedmoor Methodist Episcopal Church
Southy; some of the young marrisd couples and a few older couples of the
Bulleck’s Methodist Church went to Creedmoor, & growing community a few
miles avay, and started the Methodist Church thers. As a result in 1920
the Creedmoor Circuit was formed and the Bullock's Methodist Church became
part of & new circuit, no longer a Church in the originmal Granville Circuit,
The new circuit was composed of Bullock's, Creedmoor, Banks samd Grove Hill
Methodist Episcopil Churches, Revereml B.H. Black was the appointed pastor
to the newly formed circuit,

As far as the writer 6f this paper can find in his resesrch, the
Stem Methodist Episcopdl Church South, the other Church under study in this



. paper, was, before 1920, in the CGranville Circuit along with the Bullock's
Methodist Church, From 1887, during the pastoraie of Reverend P.L. Groom

up until the pastorate of B.l. Black in 1920 there 18 evidence that

Bullock’s and Stem Methodist Churches had the ssme ministers, These ministers

are listed as follows: P.L, Groom 1887
J.S, Nelson 1888-89
V.A, Sharpe 1889-93
B.C. Allred 1893-96
J.M. Rice 1897
T.J, Gattis 1898
¥.H, Puckett 1899-03
J.D, Pegram 1903-06
C.¥, Robinson 1906-10
M.D, Giles 191.0-12
M.D. Hix 1912-16
B.H. Black 1916-20

Bayond 1920 the Bullock's and Stem Methodist Episcopal Churches were in different
circuits, In 1952 the Bullock's and Stem -Hethodixt Churches once again came
together and formed their own Methodist Charge, More on this matter will be
explainsd when the history of the Stem Methodist Episcop@} Church is presented,
*"During the years 1924-1925 a concrete highway was built parallel to
the railroad in from of th.e Bullock's Methodist Church, Again the little
Church saw progress as cars and trucks passed by traveling at speeds of twenty
to thirty miles per hour,” 11
During 1928 ard under the pastorate of Reverend B.E. Stanfield the Bullock's
Methodist Church experienced another surge of growth. "Sunday School rooms,
& porch, and & small library were added,” 12 Also during this year of
1928, 1ight fixtures were given by Mrs, Sallie Bragg in memory of her parents
Mr, and Mrs, John H, Bragg, It is also noted, that during this same year
memorial windows were placed im the Church in memory of various loved ones,



Listed below are the names in ¥hose honor the lovely windows were given:

Kate Bragg Allen
Lucy Caroline Jones
Benjamin ¥, Bullock
Mary Elize Bullock
John C, Mitchell
Sophia C, Mitchell
Sidney Duncan Bragg
Galens Gilliom Bragg
John H, Bragg
Alice Motley Bragg
Edward Bullock
Sally Dalby Bullock
Katie Lee Caviness
Earnest L, Crews
Sallie B, Crews
Mamie B, Hester

B, Frank Hester

1859-1921
1858-1909

‘18471914

1850-1918
1822

1855-1926
1866-1916

1825-1900
1850-1924
1773-1862
1775-185%6
1916-1926
1873-1958
18741986
1877-1953
1890-1958

“In September 1933 the Bullock‘s Methodist Church celebrated its

one hundreth centennial with an all day service,

A large group attended

and it was a day of joy and thanksgiving., Dr, Gilbert T, Rowe gave an

inspiring addm,"rhe Catholicity of Methodiem.® Dr, M.T. Plyer had the

afternoon address on the subject of !Het!wdi.s& Position on Secial Problems,®' " 13

On October 15, 1954 Hurricane Hazel struck in the Hester erea aml did a

great deal of damage to the besautiful sanctuary of the Bullock's Methodist
Church, The Church roof was blown off and the interior wall needed to be

rebuﬂ.‘l.

Reverend Verson Tyson was the minister at the time, An inspiring

and uplifting message by Reversnd Tyson combined with the undefeated spirit

of the members of the Church resulted in the repairing of the Church, Ami

although the Church was btadly damaged, the worship services were held in one

of the Sunday School Roome until repairs wers completed, After all repairs

were made “visitors to the Church said it was one of the most beautiful of



0ld Churches,” 1%

As mentionsd earlier in this paper, pictured bslow is the Bullock's
Methodist Church which has servel its mesmbers and community for 105 ysars,
In addition, various mames of minisiers serving the Bullock’s Methodist Church
"have been mentioned, but I feel it necessary to give a complete liat of
those men who ministered to the pecpls of the Church since its "' . first
Worship Service in 1833, The lizt is as follows:

Benjamin Kidd X833 P.L. Groom 1887
Robert O, Burton 1834 J.3. Nelson 1888-89
H.T, Weatherly 1835 V.A. Sharpe 1889-93
Henry Speck 183637 B.C, Allred 1893-96
Joseph Goodman 16838-39 J.M, Rice 1897
David B, Nicholson 1840 T.J. Gattis 1898
H.G. Leigh 1841 W.H. Puckett 1899-03
Thomas S, Campbell 1842 J.D. Pegranm 1903-06
John Tillett 1684344 ¢.¥W, Robinson 1906-10
Ira T, Wyche 1845 M.D, Giles 1910-12
James L, Nicholson 1684647 M.D. Hix 1912-16
Nathan Anderson 1848 B, H. Black 1916-20
Linville Herdron 1848 V.A. Royal 1920=24
¥W.M. Joxdan 1849 J.J. Boone 192425
Sidney R, Trawick 1850 B,E, Stanfield 1925-29
John D, Halstead 1855 W.L. Loy 1929-33
Peter H, Joyner 1886 K.F, Duval 193334
Moses J, Hunt 1856 E.D, Dodd 1934-37
John W, FlopW 1857 E.C. Durhsa 1937-38
Junius P, Moore 1858 E.B, Craven 1938-42
William Harris 1859 D.D. Traynhanm 1942-46
Theophilus W, Moore 1860 C.S. McCoy 194647
Washington S, Chaffin 1861 D.M. Sharpe 1947-51
William C, Gannon 1862 ¥.G., Farxar 195152
T.W. Moore 1862 Homer Lemaster 1952-54
¥.C. Gannon 1864 Vernon C, Tyson 195456
John Tillett 1866-69 W¢E, Knight 1956-59
J.R, Griffith 1872-74 R.W, Leonard 1959-60
S.V. Hoyle 1875 T.E. Gensel 1960-63
J.B, Martin 1883-85 W.M, Nobels 196467
T.C. Moses 1883-85 H.D, Watson 196769
J.E. Underwood 188587 J.A. McClung 1969-72
DIR. Gri!BOI 1”2"76



_ The Bullock's United Methodis® Church, as it is called today, is siill
& beautiful old Church, Since its beginnings, the Church has been instrumental
in directing the hesrts and minis of young ard old alike toward God amd thus
bringiag about a deep, sincere feeling for their Church and their fellowman,
Many iteme have been given to the ¢ld Church and are atill being given, in
memory of loved ones who s¢ faithfully served the Church in the past-which
proves the Bullock's Methodist Church hes besn and is still a very important
part of its members’ lives, OFf the 34 membsrs on rols today, only 20 are
active, Yet it continues to pry its paxrt of the Charges bulget and continues
to have Worship Services on every first and third Sunday at 11100, ZArd even
today, although the majority of its members are senior citizens, the little
membership continues to stand up with strength amd proclaim its Christian
love for The Bullock's United Methodist Church,

On the same Charge with the Bullock's United Methodist Church is the
Stem United Methodist Church; the Stem United Methodist Chirch is also in
Granville County, North Carolima five miles fromthe Bullock's United Methodist
Church, The Stem United Methodist Church is located in the émall Village of

Stem, North Carolina, Although its membsrship is gmall today, just as Bullock's
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Methodist Church, there ware times when the S{en United Msthodist Church was
vibrating with growth and devslopment, Arnd even though growth im both Churches

is yather limited now, the onithusiass of the pest is still quite present and the

love ard fellowbhip of working togsther still existis very strongly today, Just
&s we have followed the Pullock's United Methodist Chuwch during its more
prosperous and now somewhat decliining years, let ws now follow the history

of the Stem United Msthodist Crumwch from its beginminge umtil today,

The Stem United Methodist Church 48 an sutgrowth of the Moors‘'s Chapel
Methodist Church which origimally stacd ebout one mils south of the present
Stem viil&gu on the Stem-Hester Road, UOsorpe Tans ¥osre received a land grant
from the designated government of North Carcnlina at that time in 1779. lLater
George lane Moore desdsd ito his son, John Meoore, 225 acres of land, and it
was on a portion of thie land that the Moors's Chap®i Methodist Church
was built, It is essumed that the Moore's Chapel Church wes built between
1779 and 1814, Many sesm to think tha® the most correct date is closer to
the late 1790°%s; the exact date 48 to vwhen the Mcore‘s Chapel Methodist Church
was built is not known as most of the Church records have been lost, It might
be interesting to note that while on an expedition to establish and nurture
Methodist Churches im .° Granville County, ' North Carolima, Bishop Francis
Asbury ard & companion Lovenzo Dow viesited the Moore's Chapel Methodist

Church during the early years of its growth,
The spirit of Hethodism, according to the descendants of the original

nembers of ths Moore's Chapel Methodist Chuzch, was vibrent and strong
among the congregation for many yesrs, On wmany cccasions the congregation

*would have all-day meetinge, two services, with dinner on the grounds,” 15



These wonderful occasions of sharing fellowship meals together at Moore‘'s Chapel

Methodist Church were quite significant since this is one of the traditions

which is still observed in the Stem United Methodist Church today. Yet, sadly

enough as is the case in most situations in life, and the Church is no .

exception, various modern ideas move in end old ideas and traditions fade away;

no longer do we have church meetings which last a big part of the day, or

even Sunday evening worship services, .
In the late 1800°s the reilroad depot was estabdlished in the nearby

community of Stem and rapid growth seemed to take place in the area almost

over-night, While the Village of Stem was in its tremendous growing stages, |

there was an effort on the part of some members of the Moore's Chapel Hethodist

Church to move the Church to the Stem township, Yet, this effort met with a

great deal of opposition, The younger members of the Moore’s Chapel Methodist

Church were interested in purchasing an organ for the Church amd at the

same time, also desired to build & new Church in the prospering Village of

Stemy but “the older members were satisfied with a song leader like Mr, Flay

Moore” 16 rather than singing to the music of an organ, and they wished to keep

the Church in its original location. The older members maintained "that a !

meeting house was no place for & musical instrument”,17 and that the old

building was sufficent for their needs, Because of the internal struggle

between young and 6ld members, & division occurred in the Moore's Chapél

Methodist Church, As a result of this division, the younger group who wanted

the organ within the ﬂhmhmg-hd to move the Hoore's Chapel Methodist Church

to the Village of Stem, were instrumental in starting the new Stem Methodist Church,



Despite a determined effort on the part of those older members who remained
at the Moore's Chapel Church to keep the 0ld Church functioning after the
great loss of younger members, it had to close due to an eventwal lack of
attendance and support, After the Church closed, some of the older members
who had remained at Moore's Chapel following the division, did decide to join
the Stem Methodist Church, But there were those members of the Moore's Chapel
Methodist Church who refused to join the Stem Methodist Church and affilisted
themselves with the "Russéllites”, which are today known &as the Jehovah
Witnesses, |

It might be interesting to note that the building material from Moore's
Chagel Methodist Church is still in use today, After the Church closed,
Dr, P,R, Hardee, who became the physician in the Stem Community, bought the
unused Church buildingjand much of the lumber from the old Church was used to
build part of Dr, Hardee's home in the town of Stem, Even today as ancestors
of the members of Moore's Chapel Methodist Church pass by the home that
was built for Dr, Hardee and his family; (which is still standing and is
now owned and occupied by Mr, anmd Mrs, C,S, Parrish) they must emvision
the wonderful moments of sharing together in worship and love during many
of the years that the Moore's Chapel Methodist Church was in existence,

The Stem Methodist Episcopal Church South was organized in 1886,
“The land for the Church was given by William Stem in whose honor the Church
was named.” 18 The deed enclosed imiicates that the registvation of the
lamd for & "place of divine worship” 19 was made official on July 30, 1888,
Among the Charter membsrs of the Stem Methodist Church were "R.,J. Stem,
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D.G, Bullock, O.J, Bullock, W.E, Stem, J.H. Stem, and H.A, Stem, The building
committee was composed of R.J, Stem, H.A. Stem, W.E, Stem and J.H, Stem,
Timber for the building was cut {rom the trees on the laml of Henry Webb, W.E.
Stem hauled the first load of lumber to the Church site in the fall of 1886,
Services were held in the sanctuary before the ysar emied, howsver, the
building was not completed or dedicated until the spring of 1887,%>°

Just as the Bullock’s Methodist Church was changed numerous times from
from one district and circuit to another, so was the Stem Methodist Church,
From 1886 until the conference of 1890 there is evidence that the Stem Methodist
Church was in the Granville Circuit of the Durham District e&long with the Bullock's
Methodist Church, Although through my study of the North Carolina Conference
Journals and Minutes, I have been unable to find that the Stem and Bullock's
Churches were in the Granville Circuit together, but they did share the same
ninisters during the years 1886-1920y im 1920 the Bullock’s Methodist Church
becane a part of the Creedmoor Circuit, A complete list of the ministers of the
Stem Methodist Church will be supplied later in this paper,

From 1890-1925 the Greanville Circuit was pliaced in the Raleigh District.
In 1926, with the Granville Circuit still in the Raleigh District, the Stem
Methodist Church was separated from the Granville Circuit and became & part
of the newly formed Stem Circuit, In this Stem Circuit three Churches existed:
Stem, Calvary (some of the members called this Church Knapp-of-Reeds also), anmd
Robert's Chapel Methodist Churches, And from 1927 until World War II the Stem
Circuit was in the Durham District. It was during World War II that Robert's
Chapel and Calvary Methodist Churches were removed from the Stem Circuit,

During World War II it became necessary for the Army to purchase a large area
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of land in North Carolina in oxder to maintain a military base, this land was
bought in Granville County and called Camp Butner, Calvary (or Knapp-of-Reeds)
and Robert’s Chapel Methodist Churches were Iocated on the land bought for the
Army's use and when the Army tase moved in, the two Churches were forced to
close, Many of the people who attenied the Calvary and Robert's Chapel Methodist
Churches moved to the Stem Community, and there joined the Stem Methodist

Church; yet others moved to Stem, but never again joined a Church, During

World War II until 1952, the Stem Methodist Church remained on the Stem Circuit,
but was associated with other Methodist Churches in the area, Stem was never
strong enough to be an independent station Church because of the small menbership,
In 1952 a new circuit was formed, it was named Stem-Bullock's Circuit, From
1952 until the present day the two Churches have been on the same Circuit thus
having the same ministers,

Although it was shifted to and from various circuits and districts several
times, the Stem Methodist Church grew quite rapidly in its beginnings, It is
interesting to note that just as the Church was developing, & newspaper of the
time called "The Day” reported that on April 22, 1890, "the members of the
Stem Methodist Church purchased a handsome organ.” 21 Thus it is quite apparent
that the people who helped to organize the Stam Methodist Church, after the
division over an organ in the Mgore's Chapel Methodist Church, were successful
in obtaining a musical instrument in their new Church,

On February 8, 1891, the first Church Conference was held at the Stem
Methodist Church, Reverent V.A, Sharpe was Chairman and J.H. Stem was
Secretary pro-tem until J.B, Myers was elected as permanent secretary, It
was during this meeting that the family of Reverend V,A, Sharpe moved their
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menbership to the Stem Methodist Church, Also during this meeting, R.J. Stem
was elected classleader, and it was reported that the average attendance

in Sunday School was recorded at 52, It was also voted by the Conference of
1891 to pay the preacher $40,00 per month, In 1896 the pastor’'s salary was
$640,00 per year, and in 1922 the pasior’'s salary had increased to $1,125 per
year,

In the early 1920°s "The ladies Alde Soclety” was formed, amd from its
beginnings the 1sdies workel hari to help the Stem Methodist Church in any
way possible, It was noted that this society gave plays, suppers, parties,
and banquets in orxder to raise money for needed items in the Church, In the
late 1920's the™adies Aide Society” raised snough money from their many
projects to purchase a piano for the Church; the old organ was no longer useable.
In later years this asctive group of women adopted the new title of "Woman's
Society of Christian Service.” And in recent years the title has again
changed and the group is now known as the "United Methodist Women.” .One might
add that this group of women is still very active and continues to follow the
traditions and footsteps of the early "lLadies Aide Society" as they continue
to do very beneficial acts for their Church,

Because of the incresse in Sunday School attendance, four new Sunday
School Rooms had to be added on to the real of the existing Stem Methodist
Church building in 1922, Again, projects by the "lLadies Aide Society"” and
other Church members were under way to help pay for the needed Sunday School’
Rooms, It is interesting to nots that while the Stem Methodist Church was

striving to pay for the newly added Sunday School Rooms, "a group of
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Klu'Klux Klansman entered the Worship Service one evening just as Reveremd L.H,
Joyner (who served the Stem Methcdist Church form 1922-1926) was about to begin
his service, Reverend Joyner eroce and the men, who were robed in white,

came forward and handed the minister a package containing fifty-one dollars, in
oho dollar bills which was to be applisd to the bill for the new Sunday School
Rooms,” 22 Adéording to Miss Carmen Stem, who is a descernd@nt of the original
Stem family, the leader of the Kien read the Klan Creed, and in addition to

the money he hamnded the minister & letter which said in effect, 'the Durham
Klan 95 appreciated the good work the Stem Methodist Church was doing,' " 23
After their presentation, the group of Klansman left,

On August 14, 1927 the Stem Methodist Churth held its first Annual Homecoming
Day Celebrationy Miss Caymen Stem, who attended this celebration, maintains,
®approximately 1000 psople were in attendance for tﬁa great event,” 24 Many
people in the Stem Methodist Church end community have stated on numerous
occasions that the Christisa fellowship, the food, the music by various
quartets, and the Sermon by Reverend Belton Joyner, at this 1927 Homecoming
were superdb; Since that great event on August 14, 1927, the Stem Methodist
Church has continued to have an anmual Homecoming celebration,

Many other great events have occurred in the more recent history of the
Stem Methodist Church since that great Homecoming of August 14, 1927, For
example, in 1943 new pulpit furniture was added to the Church sanctuary; in
1945 the Methodist Youth Fellowship wae oxrgenized and is still functioning;
in 1952 the Church was remodeled; in 1973 an organ was purchased; and in
1975 the United Methodist end American Flags werse dedicated. These mioua
additions to the Church have combined to help to make the Stem Methodist Church
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a very lovely one and to establish the proper atmosphere in which to experience
the Worship of Ged. Just as in the Bullock's Methodist Church history, pictured
below is the Stem United Methodist Church which has served its members and
community for 89 years, In addition, various mames of ministers serving the
Stem Methodist Church have been mentioned, but I feel it necessary to give

a complete list of those men who ministered to the psople of the Church since

its first Worship Service in 1886, The list is as follows;

P.L. Groom 1882-1886 H.L. Rogers 1939-194%1
R.J, Nelson 18861890 J.A, Lindsey 1041-1042
V.A. Sharpe 1890-18%4 ¥.B., Royals 1042-1944
B.C. Allred 1804--1898 J.K, Bostick 19441945
J.H, Rice 1898-1899 B.H. Dickson 1945

W.H, Puckett 1%00-1903 J.D. Muxrphy 1947-1948
J.D. Pegram 1903-1907 R.I., Epps 1948-1951
C.¥. Robinson 1907-1910 J.R. Regan 1951-1952
M.D. Gile= 1910-1912 H.L., Lemaster 1952-1954
M.D, Hix 1912-1916 V.C, Tyson 1954-1956
B.H, Black 1916-1920 W.E, Knight 1956-1959
F.B. Noblitt 1920-1922 R.W, Leonard 19591960
L.H, Joyner 1922-1926 T.E. Gensel 1960-1963
A.L, Stevenson  1926-1928 J.W, Hobbs 1963

J.A, Gist 192821931 Myers 1963

A.C, Thompson 1932-1933 H.D, Watson 1967-1969
J.W. Lineberger 1933-1935 J.A, McClung 1969-1972
J.F, Starnes 1935-1939 D,R, Grissom 1 1972-1976

In donclusion I might add that both the Bullock's and Stem United Methodist
Churches have experienced the pangs of sorrows and the joys of laughter by young
and “o0ld alike throughout their very historic times, But I can say, as their
minister, that both the Bullock'’s and Stem United Methodist Churches have
braved and weathered each storm of sorrow successfully and have become stronger
as a result of these storms; both Churches have also reaped benefit from the

experience of sharing in each other’s laughter and human fellowship as is
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evidenced from the warmth of Christian love which is felt upon entry into
both Churches, I have been their minister for four years now, and I have
cried and laughed with the membership of both Churches, and my love for them,
as their love for each other, will always continue to grow, Certainly
heritages of the Bullock’s and Stem United Methodist Churches are rich

ones which filled the members with love for their God, their Churches and
their fellowmen which has been expressed and experienced generation after

generation,
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